
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENC Y 
REGION 8 

Ref: SENF-UFO 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

John C. Ziegman, Owner 
Buffalo Creck Ranch 
2320 County Road 2SA 
Rand, CO S0473 

Richard J. MacLeod, Owner 
BUmiio Creck Ranch 
16794 West Brookhaven C,­
Surprise, AZ 85387 

1595 Wynkoop Street 
DENVER, CO 80202-1 129 

Phone 800-227·8917 
http://ww.N.epa.gov/region08 

FEB 29 2012 

Rc: Proposed Compliance Order, Penalty Complaint, 
And Notice Of Opportunity For J learing 
Docket No. SDWA-08-20l2-0015 

Dear Mr. Zicgman and Mr. MacLeod: 

l:ndoscd is a Proposed Compl iance Order, Penalty Complaint, And Notice or Opportunity For J Icaring 
(I.;omplaint) issued by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) as authorized by the Safe Drinking 
Water Act (SDWA), 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2. The document describes how both o f YOll, as owners and/or 
opt.:rators of Buffalo Creek Ranch have violated the SDWA and proposes both compliance requirements 
and the assessment of a civil penalty. 

However, if Buffalo Creek Ranch fully complies with the complinnce order requirement's in a 
timely nWllner as set out in the complaint', EPA will evalmlte t'he civil penalty f:'lctors at 42 U.S.c. 
§ 300h-2(c)(4)(B), :mtl may settle this case without the :Issessment Of:l civil pell;llty, if appropriate. 
Please note that there are dead lines in the complaint that must be followed. The complaint is effective 
lIpan the receipt date. and YOll have thirty (30) c,] lendar days to file an answer 10 dispute the contents of 
the complaint. 



If you have any technical questions, contact Brilla Copt at the above addrcss (with the mail code 8ENF~ 
UFO) or by phone at (303) 312 ~6229 . For legal questions, the attorney assigned to this mailer is Jean 
Bclillc, who can be reached at the above add ress (with the mail code 8ENF~L) or by phone at (303) 312 ~ 

6556. 

We urge your prompt attent ion to this matter. 

Si 'rely, 

rew M. Gaydosh 
ssistant Regional Administrator 

Office of Enforcement, Compliance 
and Environmental Justice 

Enclosures: 

Proposed Compliance Order, Penalty Complaint, 
and Notiee of Opportunity for I-Iearing 

Part 22 Rules of Practice 
Public Notice 
U.S. EPA Small Business Resourccs Fact Sheet 
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UNITED STATES 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ZOI2FES 29 f~ 10: 07 
RICGIO N 8 

1n the Matter of: ) 
) 
) 

Richard J. MacLeod ) 
John C. Ziegman, Owners ) 
Burfalo Creek Ranch ) 

) 
) 

Respondent. ) 

Docket No. SDWA-08-2012-0015 

; . I; .., 
• II ; "'_,'. 

PROI'OSED COMPLI ANCE ORDER, 
PENALTY COMI'LAINT AND NOTICE OF 
OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING 

INTRODUCTION 

I. This Proposed Compliance Order, Penalty Complaint and Notice of Opportunity for 
IIearing (complaint) is authorized by Congress in sect ion 1423 of the Public Health Service Act, 
commonly known as the Safe Drinking Water Act (the Act) . 42 U.S.C . § 300h-2. The 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations authorized by the statute arc set out in part 
144 or title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.), and violations of the statute, permits 
or EPA regulations constitute vio lations orlhe Act. The rules for thi s procccding arc the 
"Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrati ve Assessment of Civil Penalties, 
Issuance of Compliance or Correcti ve Action Orders and the Rl:vocation, Termination or 
Suspension of Permits ("Rules of Practice")," 40 C.F.R. Part 22, a copy of which is enclosed. 

2. The undersigned EPA official has bt:en properly dcJcgatt:d the authority to issue this 
complaint. 

3. EPA alleges that Richard 1. MacLeod and John C. Ziegman, owners and/or operators 
of l3uffalo Creek Ranch (Respondents), have violated the regulations and therefore the Act, as 
morc fully explained below. 

NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEARING 

4. Respondents have the right to a public hearing before a presiding officer within the 
Agency to ( I) disagree with any fact alleged by EPA in the complaint , (2) state thc grounds for 
any legal defense or (3) disagree wi th the appropriateness of the proposed penalty. 

5. To disagree with the complaint and assert Respondent's ri ght to a hearing, 
Respondents must file a written answer (and one copy) with the Regionall-learing Clerk (1595 
Wynkoop Street (8RC); Denver, Colorado 80202) within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving 
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this complaint. The answer must clearly admit, deny or explain the factual allegations of the 
complaint, the grounds for any defense, thc racts Respondents may dispute, and Respondent's 
specific request for a public hearing. Please sec sect ion 22.15 of the Rules of Pract ice for a 
complete description of what must be in the answer. FAILUltE TO FILE AN ANSWEI~ AND 
REQVEST A IIEARING W ITHIN T IIIRTY (30) CALENDA R DAYS MAY WAIVE 
RESPONDENT'S RIGHT TO DISAGREE WITII THJi: ALLEGATIONS OR I'RO POSED 
PENALTY, AND RESVLT IN A DEFAULT J UDGMENT AN)) ASSESSMENT OF 
PENALTY VI' TO T ilE MAXIMUM AUTIIOR IZED IlY THE ACT. 

SETTLEMENT NEGOTIATIONS 

6. EPA encourages discussing whether cases can be settled through inrormal sett lement 
conferences. If Respondents want to pursue the possibility of settling thi s matter, or have any 
other questions, contact Jean I3elillc, Enforccmcnt Attorney, at (3 03) 312-6556 or at the 
fo llowing address: 

Jean Belille (Mail Code 8ENF-I.) 
V.S. EPA Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, Colorado 80202 

Plcase note that calling Ms. Belille or requesting:.t settlemcnt conferencc does NOT delay 
the running of the thirty (30) dny period for filin g an .lIIswcr Hnd rC(IUesting:'1 hcaring. 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

The following general allegations <Ipply 10 all limes relevant 10 this action and to each 
violation alleged in this complaint: 

7. Respondents are "persons" as defined in the Act, and are therefore subjcct to the 
requirements of th l.! statute and/or regulations. 42 U.S.c. * 3001'(12). 

8. Respondents own and/or operate the facility known as Buna lo Creek Ranch located 
at 2320 County Road 28-A, Rand, CO (,'facility"). 

9. On, May 9, 201 J, authorized EPA employees entered the facili ty, with consent. 10 

inspect it for compliance with the law. This inspection showed that the facility operates a motor 
veh icle maintcnance mea with one floor drain. The floor drain leads to a septic system. 

10. Based on the inspect ion describcd above, Respondents own and/or operate a Class V 
Motor Vehicle Waste Disposal Well. 

I I. Respondents' disposul system, as identified in the inspection above, is classified as a 
"Class V Inject ion Well" as defined by 40 C.F.R. §§ 144.6,1 44.8 1, and 146.5. Respondent""e 
subject to applicable requirements of 40 C.F.R. §§ 124, 144 and 146. 

Page 2 of 5 



12. Lying beneath Respondents' disposal well is an underground sources oj' drinking 
water (USDWs), including but not limited to, the Coalmont aquifer. 

13. Respondents arc in violation of: 

(a) 40 C.F.R. §§ 144.12(a) and 144.82(a)(I) by owning, operating or maintaining a Class 
V disposal well which, through injection activity, allows the movement of fluid containing any 
contaminant into underground sources of drinking water, if the presence of that contaminant may 
cause a violation of any primary drinking water regulation or may otherwise adversely affeetthe 
health of persons; and 

(b) 40 C.F.R. § 144.88(b) for operating a motor vehicle waste disposal well aner the 
January 1,2007 ban of all motor vehicle waste disposal wells" 

Respondents' operation of the well is in violation of' the EPA regulations and is therefore 
in violation of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2 (e)(I). 

PRO POSED COMPLIANCE ORDER 

14. Respondents shall: 

(n) within thirty (30) calendar days of Respondent's reeeipt of this complaint , submit to 
EPA. in writing, a schedule for pennanently closing the disposal well in the motor vehicle 
maintenance area, and a plan for alternative disposal of the waste. If the closure includes the usc 
ora self-contained holding tank, the plan must address the specific type, specifications and size 
of tank to be installed. EPA will promptly rev iew the proposed plan and either approve it or 
provide Respondents with written comments; 

(b) within sixty (60) calendar days of the receipt of this complaint, pennancntly close the 
disposal well; and 

(e) within thirty (30) calendar days of complet ing this work, providc EP 1\ with 
subscqllcnt documcntation oflhe closurc. 

15. Respondents shall submit all documentation to: 

Britta Copt (Mail Code 8ENF-UFO) 
U.S. EPA Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, Colorado 80202 

Page 3 or 5 



PROI' OS IW C IVIL PENALTY 

16. For an administrative proceeding, the Act authorizes (he assessment of a civil penalty 
of up 10 $16,000 per day, for each violmion orlhe Act, lip to a maximum of$I77.500. 42 U.S.C. 
§ 300h·2 (c)(I). The Act requires EPA to take into accoun t appropriate factors in assessing <I 

civil penalty. including the seriousness orlhe violations. the economic bene lit resulting from the 
violations. any history of such vio lations, any good-fai th cnorts to comply with the rcquircmcnts. 
the economic impact on the violator, and such olher mailers as justice may n.:quirc. 

17. As required by the Act, prior to the assessment ora civil penalty. EPA will provide 
public notice or the proposed penalty, and reasonab le opportunity ror the public (0 comment on 
the matter and present evidence in the event a hearing is held 42 U.S.c. § 300h~2 (c)(3)(B). 

ew M. Gaydosh 
Assistant Regional AdministmlOr 
Office or Enrorcement, Compliance 

And Environmental Justice 

• 
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In the Malter of: Richard ,1. MacLeod :lnd .John C. Zieglll<1l1 , Owncrs , Buffalo C reel< 
J~:llIch 

Doekct No.: SDWA-08-2012-001S 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned hereby cert ifies that the original and one copy orthe PROPOSED 
COMPLIANCE ORDER, PENALTY COMPLA INT, AND NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR 
I lEA RING with the Consolidated Rules or Practice (40 C. F.R. Part 22). a Public Notice. and thc 
U.S. EPA Small13usincss Resources Fact Sheet were hand·carricd to the Regional Ill..!aring 
Clerk. EPA Region 8,1595 Wynkoop Street: Denver. Colorado 80202· 1129. and that a truc copy 
of the same was sent via Ccrt ified Mail to: 

John C. Ziegman 
l3 umllo Creek Raneh 
2320 County Road 28A 
Rand. CO 80473 

Richard J. MacLeod 
I3urtillo Creek Ranch 
16794 West L3rookhaven CI. 
Surprise. A'/. 85387 

J, /),q /20 I ~ 
Date 
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U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTEC TION AGENCY 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT ON 
I'ROPOSED COMPLIANCE ORDER, PENALTY COMPLAINT, 

AND 
NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING 

AGAINST 
BUFFALO CREEK RANCH 

FOR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH 
UNDERG RO UND INJECTION CONTROL REGULATIONS 

I'URPOSE OF I'UBLIC NOTICE 

['he purpose of this notice is to solicit written comments on a Proposed Compliance Order, Penalty 
t'ompl'lint, and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing (complaint) [Docket No. SDWA-08-2012-0015 ] that 
l{1..:gion 8 of the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) proposes to issue to Buffalo 
(' rc'cK Ranch for alleged violations al the facility located in Rand, Colorado. The complaint alleges 
\iol~lt i0nS orlhe Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) and the regulations detailing the requirements of the 
SDWA's Underground injc(.;tion Control (UIC) program. These regulations govern the injection of 
Iluids that may endanger an underground source of drinking water (USDW). The complaint proposes 
compliance requirements and monetary penalties for the alleged violations. 

The EPA desires to receive written comments from any interested party having knowledge of the alleged 
violations or who can provide any information useful to ensure that the complaint is appropriate. EPA 
\\ i II n:vio,:w and consider all comments received, and wi ll thereafter detennine whether to modify or 
withdraw the complai nt. 

BA ("KG 1(0 UN J) 

P,lrt C of the SDWA (~O U.S.C. §300h e1 seq) requires the EPA to regulate underground injection of 
t1uid through wells to assure that underground sources of drinking water (USDWs) are not endangered. 
Section 1421 of the SDWA (40 U.S.C. §300h) requires EPA to administer ule programs in States that 
do not have approved State UIC programs. Regulation of the UIC Class V Program has not been 
delegated to the State of Colorado; therefore, EPA administers the program in accordance with title 40 
ufthe Code of Federal Regulations (40 C.F.R.) parts 124, 144, 146, 147, and 148 . 

l'he Class V motor vehicle waste disposal well which is the subject of this complaint, is located at 2320 
Coumy Road 28·/\, Rand, Colorado. A Class V injection well, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 144.6 and 
I·H),5, lS;1 shallow injection well that injects fluids into or above a USDW. 

Ih..: complaint alkgr;::s that John C, Ziegman and Richard 1. MacLeod as owners and/or operators of 
Buffalo Creek Ranch are in violation of UIC regulations and is subject to appropriate penalties for 



failing to prevent movement of fluids into a USDW that may cause a violation of a primary drinking 
watcr regulation. under 40 C.F.R. part 142 or otherwise adversely affect the health 
of persons and operating a banned well. The complaint cites that EPA may assess an administrative civil 
penalty of up to $16,000 per day, for each violation of the Act, up to a maximum of$177,500 and 
proposes certain compliance measures, including the permanent closure of the well. 

PUBL IC COM MENTS 

Wrillcn comments on the complaint are encouraged and will be accepted at the address listed below for 
a period of thirty (30) calendar days after the publication of this notice. Written comments submitted by 
the public as well as information submitted by Buffalo Creek Ranch, will be available for public review 
as part of the Administrative Record, subject to the provisions of law restricting the disclosure of 
confidential information. Buffalo Creek Ranch may request a hearing. Any person submitting written 
comments will be notified of and has a right to participate in such a hearing. The complaint and the 
Administrative Record are available for review between 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. at the address listed 
below. It is recommended that those wishing to view the Administrative Record call Jean Belille, 
Enforcement Attorney, Legal Enforcement Program, EPA Region 8, at (303) 3 I 2-6556 before visiting 
the EPA Region 8 offices. Please submit written comments to: 

Tinn Artemis (8RC) 
Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA, Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, Colorado 80202 

Any person interested in receiving their own copy of this or any future public notice of a UIC 
administrative action can ca ll Brilla Copt in the UIC program, EPA Region 8, at (303) 312-6229. 

THE DECISION 

EPA will rcvicw and consider all public comments received on the public notice and will thereafter 
d(:termine whether to modify or withdraw the complaint. If the complaint is revised, copies shall be 
provided to all parties and to all members of the public who have commented. 

-.... \-.~-.)---
Darcy O'Connor, Acting Director 
UICIFIFRAlOPA Technical Enforcement Program 
U.S. EPA, Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, CO 80202 



§21.13 

approve or di:c3approve the Sta.te issued. 
s tatement, in accordance with the re­
qUirements of § 21.5. 

(2) The RelJional Administrator will 
periodically review State program per­
formance. In the even t of State pro­
grnm deficiencies the Regio nal Admin­
i~(,rator will noti fy the State of sucll 
deficiencies. 

(3) During that. period that a ny 
S tate's program is classified as defi­
c ient, :-;tatcments issued by a 81,ate 
shall also be sent to the Regional Ad­
rninisLrator for review. The Regional 
Administrator shall notify the StaLe, 
Lho applican t. and the SBA of any de­
Lcrmination subsequently made, in ac­
cordance wi th § 21.5, on any such state­
ment. 

(i) H within 60 days a fter notice of 
such deficiencies has been providcc1, 
the St.ate has not taken corrective e f­
forts, and if the deficiencies s ignifi­
c<:lllt.ly a.ffccL t,he conduct of t.he pro­
gram, the Regional Aclmini:-;t.r-a.tor, 
a.ftcr sufficient. notice b~ been pro­
vided to t.he Regional Director of SBA, 
!iha.ll wit.hdr?w the apPl'oval o f t.he 
State program. 

(ii) Any Sk'tte whose program is with­
drawn a.nd whol:5c deficiencies have been 
(;orrected may later reapply as pro­
vided III § 21,12(0.), 

(rr) Funds a..PP I'opriated under section 
l OG of the Act may be utilit:od by a 
State agency authorized to receive 
~uch funds in condu cting this program. 

*2 1.13 'Effect of certification upun au-
thority to enforce applic:lbJe sbncl ­
ants, 

The certi fication by EPA or a St.ate 
rol' SBA Loan purposes in no way con­
stitutes 0. dete rmination by EPA or the 
State that the fo.cil1ties ce rtified (a) 
will be constructed within tho time 
:;)j)ocifjed by a.n applicable standard or 
(b) will be canstrnc t.ed and installed in 
u.ccordance with the plans and speci­
fi(;Mions submitted in the application, 
wil l be opera.tod and maintained prop­
t:rly, 01' will bEl applied to proct;!!;S 
wastes whlt:h are the !;a.me :l,S described 
in t.he application. The ce rt.ification in 
IllJ way constitut(::s 0. wa.iver by C;PA ur­
n State of its a.uthority to take appro­
pria.te enforcement action against th-e 
OW uel" 01" opel'atar of such facilities fOl" 
violations of an a.ppl i cable standard. 

, r .. '. ' i 

40 CFR Ch. I (7- 1-08 Ediiion) 

PART 22-CONSOLIDATW RULES 
OF PRACTICE GOVERNING THE 
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSESSM ENT OF 
CIVIL PENALTIES AN D TH E REV ­
OCATION / TERMINATION OR SUS­
PENSION OF PERMITS 

Subpert A-Generel 

Sec. 
22.1 SCOI10 o f this pa.rt. 
22.2 Use of nu mbe r nnr! t~n(!'-'r. 
22.3 Dcfinit.lans. 
2'4.1 Power!; a nd dut.jes of t.he j';nvil'on­

moni",] APpeals Boud, Regiooal Judicia.l 
Officcr- and Pl"ClNi(j il1 l{ Orfic e/"; UhlqUa.li­
fl cn.t; \on, withtlr::.w :d, and rc:t..<;!l ig-nment., 

22 .5 ji'Hinr;-, Nel'vicc. :mrJ [orm of ::.1I fil ell 
dt)cllrnOl1t~; bu~inll:;~l eoniid(;ntia lit.y 
cla.ims. 

22.6 FUiub!' ;LIHI :-it,z·v iG(: of ruIl:H;::;, orden; ~uHI 
duei!;ions. 

22.7 Compu t ation .. nd c:·: u:n.;ion of t-imc. 
22.R Ez parte rJ jSCll~:;ioll of p!"u(";('Njjn!~ 
22.0 I';x:unlnat.lon of dOCllllH;!l'--~ filce 

Subpart B-Parties end AppC'erances 

22.10 !\ IIPtJ:l.l'n.ncel; 
22.1 1 [nt..t~!·v(lIlt.ion ;LIHlll(m-l,sLy briefs 
22. 12 Coul;oljda.Lion and :;(>\"(>!"ance. 

Subpart C-Prehea;ing PrOCedures 

22.1:.1 Commencome:ttt; of;1. procucdinl:. 
22.11 t:om pla.int . 
22.15 Allswer to the: compln.inc. 
22.lG M ot ion!;. 
:l2.1" Dl;!fault... 
:<2.18 Qui c),: l' t:llwluiion: ~d,tlcli1\' lj t.: ,1 1L ~J 

fI!lLlv (; dh;put.o !"(J:;olut.ion. 
22.19 Pl"ehcal·itlL~ in fonn~t.io!l -::·;ch:l.nr;-e : Pl' t:­

lH!:l.I'i n tr confe!"(!ne",: aLhill' di"f":overy. 
22.20 Accelel':l.t.c(i dccision; dfJeision LO dIS­

miss. 

Subpart D-Hearing Procedures 

22.21 Assic-nrncnt 01 J'resitii:1[r Officer: 
scuedullng ch(; hc:l.l"illlr. 

22.22 Evidenco. 
22.23 ObjecLinns ami offers uf J.,rool 
::''2.21 Burden of presnnt:ti.-ion; bu:·(!cn of per· 

sua.:l\on: pn::I)Ortdn!":~zj(!" 0)" 1..1:(' (;vicicllcc 
~Lalld:l. !'d. 

:!'2.2!l F'illng- tht, traw;cr\JI: 
2~.2(j Propos(,d nn!l1zH::, ;tJ!lI~lu~;ion>i, alld 

()!'d\'l" 

Subpart e-Iniiial Decision and Moiion ·io 
Reopen c Ht:cring 

22.2'/ lnit.l:l.1 deciSion. 
22.:W MuttOl) t o roopell a hb:~ri!lg-. 
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~EA 
United States 
Environmental Protection 
Agency 

Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance (2201A) 
EPA 300 -F-07-003 October 2007 
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'f'::llg",'~ '.:' . '. '. INFORMATION SHEET1i~:: '. .' 
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U. S. EPA Small Business Resources 

I f you own a small business, the United States EnvironlTe: ,tal P'otection Agency (EPA) offers 
a variety of compliance assistance resources such as workshops, training seSSions, hotlines, 

websites, and guides to assist you in complying with federal and state environmental laws. These 
resources can help you understand your environmental obliga+ions. Improve compliance, and find cost­
effective ways to comply through the use of pollution prevention and other innovative technologies. 

Compl iance Assistance Centers 
(www.assistancecenlers.net) 
In partnership with industry, universities, and other federal 
and state agencies, EPA has established Compliance 
Assistance Centers that provide information targeted to 
industries with many small businesses. 

Agriculture 
(www.epa.gov/agriculture or 1-888-663-2155) 

Automotive Recycling Industry 
(www.ecarcenter.org) 

Automotive Service and Repair 
(W'NW.ccar.greenlink.org or 1-888-GRN-LlNK) 

Chemical Industry 
(www.chemalhance.org) 

Construction Industry 
(www.cicacenter.org or 1-734-995-4911) 

Education 
(www.campuserc.org) 

Healthcare Industry 
(www.hercenter.org or 1.734-995-4911) 

Metal Finishing 
(www.nmfrc.org or 1-734-995-4911) 

Paints and Coatings 
('NWw.paintcenter.org or 1.734-995-4911) 

Printed Wiring Board Manufacturing 
(www.pwbrc.org or '.734-995-4911) 

Printing 
(www.pneac.org or 1-888-USPNEAC) 

Transportation Industry 
('IM'W.transource.org) 

Tribal Governments and Indian Country 

(...........,....epa.govltribaVcompliance or 202-564-2516) 

US Border Environmental Issuos 
(www.bordercenter.org or 1-734-995-4911) 

The Centers also provide State Resource Locators 
(www.envcap.orglstatetoolslindex.cfm) for a wide range of 
topics to help you find important environmental oompliance 
information specific to your state. 

EPA Websites 
EPA has severallntemet sites that provide useful compli­
ance assistance information and materials for small 
businesses. If you don't have access to the Internet at 
your business, many publ ic libraries provide access to the 
Internet at minimal or no cost. 

EPA's Home Page 
WNW.epa.g:N 

Small Business Gateway 
...........,....epa.govJsmalibusiness 

Compliance Assistance Home Page 
www.epa.gov/complianceJassistancc 

Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance 
www.epa.gov/COrilpliance 

Voluntary Partnership Programs 
www.epa.gov/partners 



Hotlines, Helplines & Clearinghouses 
(www.epa.gov/epahome/holline.htm) 
EPA sponsors many free hotlines and clearinghouses that 
provide convenient assistance regarding environmental 
requirements. A few examples are listed below: 

Clean Air Technology Center 
("""""".epa.govlttnlcatc or 1·919-541-0800) 

Emergency Planning and Community Right-Ta-Know Act 
(www.epa.govisuperfundlresourceslinfocenler/epcra.htm or 
1-800-424-9346) 

EPA's Small Business Ombudsman Hotline provides 
regu latory and technical assistance information. 
(www ,epa.gov/sbo Of 1--800-368-5888) 

The Nationa! Environmental Compliance Assistance 
Clearinghouse provides quick access to compliance assis­
tance tools, contacts, and planned actIvities from the U.S. 
EPA, states, and other compliance assistance providers 
(www.epa.govlclearinghouse) 

National Response Contor to report oil and hazardous 
substance spills. 
(www.nrc.uscg.mil or 1-800-424-8802) 

Pollution Prevention Information Clearinghouse 
(www.epa.govlopptintrlppic or 1-202-566-0799) 

Safe Drinkin9 Water Hotline 
(www.epa.govlsafewaterlhotlinefindex.html or 1-800-426-4791) 

Stratospheric Ozona Refrigerants Information 
(www.epa.gov/ozone or 1-800-296-1996) 

Toxics Assistance Information Service also includes asbestos 
inquiries. 
(1-202-554-1404 ) 

Wetlands Helpline 
(www.epa.govfowowfwetlandsfwetline.htmlor 1-800-832-7828) 

State Agencies 
Many state agencies have established compliance assis­
tance programs that provide on-site and other types of 
assistance. Contact your local state environmental agency 
for more information or the following two resources: 

EPA's Small Business Ombudsman 
(www.epa.govlsbo or 1-800-368-5888) 

Small Business Environmental Homepage 
(www.smallbiz-enviroweb.org or 1-724-452-4722) 

Compliance Incentives 
EPA provides incentives for environmental compliance. By 
participating in compliance assistance programs or 

voluntarily disclosing and promptly correcting violations 
before an enforcement action has been initiated, 

businesses may be eligible for penalty waivers or reductions. 

EPA has two policies that potentially apply to small 

businesses: 

The Small Business Compliance Policy 
(www.epa.govfcompliancef1ncentivesfsmallbusiness) 

Audit Policy 
(www.epa.gov/compliancefincentiveslauditing) 

Commenting on Federal Enforcement 
Actions and Compliance Activities 
The Small Business Regulatory Enforcement Fa irness Act 
(SBREFA) established an SBA Ombudsman and 10 Regional 
Fairness Boards to receive comments from small businesses 
about federal agency enforcement actions. If you believe that 
you fali within the Small Business Administration's definition 
of a small business (based on your North American Industry 
Classification System (NAICS) designation, number of 
employees, or annual receipts, defined at 13 C.F.R. 121.201; 
in most cases, this means a business with 500 or fewer 
employees), and wish to comment on federal enforcement 
and compliance activities, call the SBREFA Ombudsman's 
toll-free number at 1-888·REG-FAIR (1-888-734-3247). 

Every small business that is the subject of an enforcement 
or compliance action is entitled to comment on the 
Agency's actions without fear of retaliation. EPA 
employees are prohibited from using enforcement or any 
other means of retaliation against any member of the 
regulated community in response to comments made under 
SBREFA. 

Your Duty to Comply 
If you receive compliance assistance or submit comments 
to the SBREFA Ombudsman or Regional Fairness Boards, 
you still have the duty to comply with the Jaw, including 
providing timely responses to EPA information requests. 
administrative or civil complaints, other enforcement 
actions or communications. The assistance information 
and comment processes do not give you any new rights or 
defenses in any enforcement action. These processes 
also do not affect EPA's obligation to protect public health 
or the environment under any of the environmental statutes 
it enforces, including the right to take emergency remedial 
or emergency response actions when appropriate. Those 
decisions will be based on the facts in each situation. The 
SBREFA Ombudsman and Fairness Boards do not 
participate in resolving EPA's enforcement actions. Also, 
remember that to preserve your rights, you need to comply 
with all rules governing the enforcement process. 

EPA is disseminating this information to you 
without making a determination that your business 
or organization is a small business as defined by 
Section 222 of the Small Business Regulatory 
Enforcement Fairness Act or related provisions. 


